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BEFORE THE TENNESSEE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 
Nashville, Tennessee 

In re: Application of Johnson City Energy Authority, d/b/a BrightRidge for a State-

Issued Certificate of Franchise Authority 

Docket No. _____________________

AFFIDAVIT OF JEFFREY DYKES 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON 

I, Jeffrey Dykes, state as follows: 

A. Identification of Affiant and Application Fee 

1. Affiant is an Officer

My name is Jeffrey Dykes, and I am the President and Chief Executive Officer of Johnson 

City Energy Authority, d/b/a BrightRidge (hereinafter referred to in this Application as the 

“Applicant”). Consistent with Tenn. Code Ann. § 7-59-305(c), I am an officer authorized to make 

this affidavit on behalf of the Applicant. 

2. Application Fee

Application fee of Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) is submitted with this Application as 

required under Tenn. Code Ann. § 7-59-305(b)(l)(A) and is based on the population of the service 

area being not more than fifty thousand (50,000) as reflected in the most recent decennial census. 

The Applicant has also evaluated the total number of potential premises and locations passed in 

the service area in order to validate its determination. 

B. Required Information and Affirmations 

1. Compliance with Applicable Law

a. The Applicant agrees to comply with the requirements of Tennessee

Competitive Cable and Video Services Act, Tenn. Code Ann. § 7-59-301, et seq. 

filed electronically in docket office on 01/23/19
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(the “Act”), expressly including the applicable nondiscrimination and service 

deployment requirements of Tenn. Code Ann. § 7-59-311.  Additionally, the 

Applicant acknowledges the provisions of Tenn. Code Ann. § 7-59-312 relative to 

enforcement of nondiscrimination and deployment requirements.  The Applicant 

has included a summary of its plan to comply with the requirements of Tenn. Code 

Ann. § 7-59-311 and supporting information as Confidential Exhibit A.  This 

document has been withheld from electronic filing. The Applicant has evaluated its 

deployment plans and reasonably concludes that the plan will result in the required 

deployment. 

b. The Applicant agrees to comply with all applicable federal and state laws 

and regulations to the extent that the state laws and regulations are not in conflict 

with or superseded by the Act, or other applicable law. The Applicant further agrees 

to timely file with the FCC all forms required by the FCC in advance of offering 

cable or video services for purchase. 

2. Description of Service Area 

The Applicant seeks a state-issued certificate of franchise authority in order to provide 

cable and video services for purchase in portions of the City of Johnson City and the Town of 

Jonesborough and in unincorporated areas in Washington County and a small portion of Sullivan 

County, Tennessee, all as identified and described in Exhibit B.   

3. Intent to Serve 

The Applicant intends to begin to offer cable or video services for purchase, in the area 

described in Subsection 2, within twenty-four (24) months of the date of the issuance of a state-

issued certificate of franchise authority. 
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4. Indemnification 

The Applicant agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the state, municipality, county and 

any employee or representative of the state, municipality or county, as well as any political 

subdivision of the state and any employee or representative of the political subdivision 

(individually and collectively referred to in Tenn. Code Ann. § 7-59-318 as the “indemnitee”) to 

the extent required under Tenn. Code Ann. § 7-59-318 and subject to the rights and limitations 

established therein. 

5. Contact Information & Authorized Representatives  

a. The address and telephone number of the Applicant’s principal place of 

business are as follows: 

2600 Boones Creek Road 
Johnson City, TN 37615 
(423) 952-5000 

 
b. The following persons are the Applicant’s principal executives with 

responsibility for broadband-related matters: 

Jeffrey Dykes 
Brian Bolling  
Mark Eades 
Stacy Evans 
Rodney Metcalf 
 

c. The following persons are authorized to represent the Applicant before the 

Tennessee Public Utility Commission: 

    Jeffrey Dykes 
    Mark W. Smith, Miller & Martin PLLC 
 

6. Qualifications 

By review of qualifications, the Applicant has the managerial, financial and technical 

qualifications to provide cable or video services and/or broadband Internet service.  
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a. Managerial and Technical Qualifications: The management and operations 

team serving BrightRidge has a combined 135 years’ experience operating various 

utility and broadband systems and delivering exemplary service to customers. The 

Applicant’s predecessor, the Johnson City Power Board of the City of Johnson City, 

Tennessee, began purchasing electricity from the Tennessee Valley Authority in 

1945 and, today the Applicant successfully serves approximately 78,000 customers 

in Johnson City, Jonesborough, Washington County and parts of Greene, Carter 

and Sullivan counties in Tennessee. As a part of its electric system operations, 

BrightRidge has developed substantial experience with fiber optic networks that it 

has installed, maintained and operated as part of its core electric system operations. 

The Applicant benefits from its leadership that is familiar with retail service and 

technology and also with the local community as well. More biographical 

information about the BrightRidge leadership team can be found in Exhibit C. 

b. Financial Qualifications: The Applicant will have the sufficient financial 

wherewithal to support its operations as it delivers cable and video services. The 

applicant’s financial management team has extensive experience managing 

financial operations. The successful financial management of BrightRidge is 

evidenced by the financial statements included in Exhibit D. 

7. Customer Service  

a. Customer Complaints:  Whenever customer complaints arise, they will be 

handled in a professional and expedient manner. First line customer service 

representatives will record the complaint, taking down a complete listing of specific 

issues and detailed information.  Customer service calls will be primarily answered 

by BrightRidge employees but during high volumes may be routed to a 3rd party 
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call center.  If the customer service representative cannot resolve the issue it will 

be referred to a team lead or supervisor. Each customer’s complaint will be handled 

within forty-eight (48) hours, and an employee or agent of the Applicant will 

respond back to the customer within that period of time. If the customer is 

dissatisfied with the team lead/supervisor response, then the customer may request 

a formal hearing during regular business hours and by appointment with the CS 

management team. A customer requesting a hearing shall have the right to have a 

representative at the hearing to represent his or her interest and may have a witness 

present on his or her behalf.  Hearings will be conducted by a duly appointed 

member of management. A BrightRidge representative will hear the evidence, 

render a decision to said customer and if requested, in writing. If the customer is 

dissatisfied with the results of said hearing, he or she may file a verbal or written 

request for an appeal to the Chief Executive Officer of BrightRidge by contacting 

BrightRidge’s Administrative Assistant at 423.952.5039. The CEO will be the final 

appeal; however, any customer may request to appear before the board of directors 

by contacting BrightRidge’s Administrative Assistant to the CEO no less than 

seven (7) days prior to the scheduled board meeting.  

b. Billing Adjustments:  Billing errors or irregularities will be detailed out and 

then appropriate adjustments will be written up.  These adjustments will be 

reviewed by a supervisor and then made to the customer’s account, as appropriate. 

c. Contact Information:  Customers who have questions or complaints 

regarding their service may contact the Applicant at (423) 952-5000 (BrightRidge 

Customer Service Phone Number).  Communication with government officials 
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regarding customer complaints should be referred to the Chief Broadband Officer 

at the Applicant’s primary address shown above or by email to 

broadband@brightridge.com. 

8. Required Notices 

a. The Applicant has provided notice and a copy of this Application to each 

local government that would be affected by the state-issued certificate of franchise 

authority at the addresses set forth in the list attached as Exhibit E. 

b. The Applicant will give notice to other entities with facilities in the rights- 

of-way, consistent with any nondiscriminatory and generally applicable local 

ordinance or resolution requiring such notice prior to performing any installation in 

the right-of-way. 

c. The Applicant agrees to provide notice to an affected local governing 

authority ten (10) days prior to providing service in that jurisdiction. 

9. Minority-Owned Business Participation Plan 

In accordance with Tenn. Code Ann. § 7-59-313, the Applicant agrees to comply with its 

Minority- Owned Business Participation Plan attached as Exhibit F. 
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CONFIDENTIAL EXHIBIT A 

Application of Johnson City Energy Authority, d/b/a BrightRidge for a State-Issued 

Certificate of Franchise Authority 

Deployment Plan 

 

 

 

The deployment plan and supporting materials have been withheld from the electronic 

filing. The plan and supporting materials have been filed as a confidential exhibit in 

accordance with Tenn. Code Ann. § 7-59-305(d)(2). 
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EXHIBIT B 

Application of Johnson City Energy Authority, d/b/a BrightRidge for a State-Issued 

Certificate of Franchise Authority 

Service Areas 

 

Descriptions of the Phase 1, Phase 2 and Phase 3 service areas are provided on the following 
pages along with maps showing the service areas for each phase.    



 

 
16921387v4 

Phase 1 Deployment  

Serving Area Network 

Technology 

utilized 

Population 

(in specific 

zone) 

Businesses 

passed 

Homes 

passed 

Cable TV 

offered 

Downtown Johnson City, TN 

� N. Roan St/I26 intersection 

identifies the northern border 

� I26 provides the eastern border 

� Hwy 11E provides the western 

border 

� University Parkway provides the 

southern border 

Fiber-optic 8,079 373 3,847 Yes 

10 Business Parks 

� Washington Co Ind Park 

� Tri-County Industrial Park 

� JC Industrial Park 

� Med Tech Park 

� Burley Site 

� Hanover Park 

� Innovation Park 

� West Side Park 

� Buffalo Park 

� Princeton Rd 

 

Fiber-optic n/a 216 n/a Yes 

Downtown Jonesborough 

� 2nd Ave/W. Main St intersection to 

Dillow Dr/E Main St intersection.  

� 500 ft of Main St primary line. 

Fiber-optic 220 50 105 Yes 
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Phase 2 Deployment 

Serving Area Network 

Technology 

utilized 

Population 

passed (in 

specific zone) 

Businesses 

passed 

Homes 

passed 

Cable 

TV 

offered 

Johnson City, TN Phase 2 

Includes Knob Creek Rd, N. State of Franklin, 

Sunset Dr, Med Tech Parkway, Avondale Forest, 

West Hills, Arbor Heights areas. 

� N. Roan St/I26 intersection provides the 

central border 

� I26 provides the upper eastern border 

� Hwy 11E provides lower eastern border 

� West Market St provides the southern 

border 

� Hwy 381 provides the lower western 

border 

� Upper western border follows railroad 

 

Fiber-optic 9,769 489 4,652 Yes 
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Phase 3 Deployment 

Serving Area Network 

Technology 

utilized 

Population 

passed (in 

specific 

zone) 

Businesses 

passed 

Homes 

passed 

Cable TV 

offered 

Gray & Oak Grove 

Includes the town of Gray, Oak Grove, and 

Boones Creek communities. 

� Boone Lake provides the north east 

border 

� Bart Green Dr provides the south 

east border 

� I26 provides lower southern border 

� At exit 13, the build crosses I26 

down toward Shadden Rd. 

� Coverage extends just of Don May 

Rd for the western border 

Fiber-optic 9,371 294 4,463 Yes 
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EXHIBIT C 

Application of Johnson City Energy Authority, d/b/a BrightRidge for a State-Issued 

Certificate of Franchise Authority 

 

Managerial and Technical Leadership Biographical Information 
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Jeffrey R. Dykes – President and Chief Executive Officer  

Mr. Dykes has been employed with BrightRidge since January 1, 2013 as Chief Executive Officer. 
He oversees all aspects including financial management, budgeting, long range forecasting, 
staffing, administration and business development. Mr. Dykes has 22 years of management 
experience in the power industry including previously serving as General Manager of Newport 
Utilities and Vice President/General Manager for Trigen Kansas City Energy/Veolia Energy. His 
experience includes electrical, water, waste water, customer service, finance, engineering, business 
services and IT management. Previous work experience also includes generation, transmission, 
and distribution within the electrical industry, as well as water and waste water. He has also served 
as General Manager of the Elizabethton Electric System in Elizabethton, Tennessee and 
Modification Manager/Engineer at Westinghouse Savannah River Site in South Carolina. Mr. 
Dykes is a member of the Washington County Economic Development Council and Tennessee 
Municipal Electric Power Association. A native of Elizabethton, Tennessee, Mr. Dykes holds a 
Bachelor’s Degree in Liberal Arts from Milligan College, Johnson City, Tennessee. 
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Brian Bolling – Chief Financial Officer and Chief Customer Officer  

Mr. Bolling has been employed with BrightRidge since February 29, 2012. With over 25 years in 
the utility industry, he originally joined the Power Authority as Business Development and 
Performance Officer. Responsibilities included preparing business plans and supporting 
documents relevant to the sale of electricity and products and services related thereto. Mr. Bolling 
specialized in reviewing policies and internal controls to improve business performance. He was 
later renamed Chief Customer Relations Officer in 2014 and then became Chief Financial Officer 
and Chief Customer Officer. Currently, he directs the day to day operations of General Accounting 
and Finance, Customer Support, and Energy Services & Marketing. While coordinating with the 
executive management team and Chief Executive Officer, he is largely responsible for financial 
reporting, the annual budget and forecasts, audits, business development and cash liquidity. Mr. 
Bolling is also involved in rate analysis and design. Previous experience includes Bristol 
Tennessee Essential Services and BVU Authority where he was Vice President of Customer and 
Technical Support. Mr. Bolling holds a Master of Accountancy and a Bachelor’s Degree in 
Accounting from East Tennessee State University, Johnson City, Tennessee. In addition, he is an 
actively licensed Certified Public Accountant. 
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Stacy Evans – Chief Broadband Officer  
 

Mr. Evans has been employed with BrightRidge since June 4, 2018.  Stacy brings thirty years of 
experience working in telecommunication networking and management. The past 16 years, he 
served in the telecommunications division at Bristol Virginia Utilities (BVU) in the capacities of 
Network Engineer and Manager of Network and Fiber Engineering. There he was responsible for 
the startup operations and continued support of the 1,100 mile Fiber-optic based network that 
serves over 13,000 customers. BVU OptiNet is recognized as the first municipal broadband 
network (2002) in the United States to provide triple-play services over an all-fiber-optic network. 

Stacy has years of experience working as a leader in technology improvements of different 
business operations such as Dupont, Fingerhut, US Gypsum, and Aerus Electrolux.  He has an 
extensive knowledge of network infrastructures, process automation, and system efficiency 
improvements.  

Stacy holds a Master of Business Administration and a Bachelor of Information Technology from 
King University.   In coordination with the executive management team, Stacy is assisting 
BrightRidge in offering high-speed fiber-optic and wireless broadband services to our service area 
communities.   
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Mark Eades – Chief Engineering and Technology Officer  
 

Mr. Eades has been employed with BrightRidge since April 13, 1987 and has over 30 years of 
experience within the power industry. Since joining BrightRidge, he has served as Planning and 
Operations Engineer, Assistant Manager of Engineering, Manager of Engineering, and Chief 
Operations Officer. Mr. Eades moved to his current role as Chief Engineering and Technology 
Officer in October 2014 and currently directs the Engineering, IT and Warehouse departments. He 
oversees the entire electrical system of the BrightRidge service area, such as 69kv Transmission 
System, Substations and 13kv Distribution Systems to ensure all are adequate and sound. Mr. 
Eades coordinates long range plans and construction projects to include both transmission and 
distribution lines. He formulates the capital budget and a five year capital expense forecast. A 
native of Johnson City, Tennessee, Mr. Eades holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical Engineering 
from Tennessee Technological State University, Cookeville, Tennessee. Upon graduation, he was 
previously employed as an Electrical Engineer with Burlington Industries and CRS Sirrine. 
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Rodney Metcalf – Chief Operations Officer  

Mr. Metcalf began work with BrightRidge on April 16, 1990 as a Journeyman Lineman. He served as 
a Lineman in the Service Department until moving to Assistant Service Manager/Service and 
Construction Coordinator in 2004 where he directed and assigned the activities of the Service Linemen 
in regards to construction and maintenance of BrightRidge’s distribution and service facilities. In 2005, 
he was named Associate Operations Officer and in 2014 was promoted to Chief Operations Officer. In 
this role, Mr. Metcalf is responsible for directing the operations of the Construction Department, 
Service Department, Mechanics and Fleet and the Tree Trimming Department. In addition, he works 
in direct relation with the Engineering Department to ensure that all operations are completed 
efficiently and effectively to ensure BrightRidge’s power delivery system is adequate and stable. Mr. 
Metcalf is largely responsible for the safety of his employees, the general public and BrightRidge’s 
electric system network. A native of Jefferson City, Mr. Metcalf completed the Lineman’s 
Apprenticeship program to become a Class A Journeyman Lineman while employed with Dillard 
Smith Construction Company. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Organizational Management from 
Tusculum College, Greeneville Tennessee, and an Associate’s Degree in Electrical Technology from 
Northeast State Community College, Blountville, Tennessee. 

 

 

  



 

 
16921387v4 

EXHIBIT D 

Application of Johnson City Energy Authority, d/b/a BrightRidge for a State-Issued 

Certificate of Franchise Authority 

 

BrightRidge Audited Financial Statements dated June 30, 2018 
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Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors 
Johnson City Energy Authority dba 

BrightRidge

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Johnson City 
Energy Authority dba BrightRidge (BrightRidge), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise BrightRidge's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditors' Responsibiiity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to BrightRidge's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of BrightRidge's 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion.

Johnson City
Kingsport
Greeneville

801B Sunset Drive, Johnson City, TN 37604 
1361 South Wilcox Drive, Kingsport, TN 37660 
550 Tusculum Boulevard, Greeneville, TN 37745

423.282.4511
423.246.1725
423.638.8516

www.BCScpa.com

http://www.BCScpa.com


Johnson City Energy Authority dba 
BrightRidge

Independent Auditors' Report

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the business-type activities of the Johnson City Energy Authority dba BrightRidge, as of June 30, 
2018, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof forthe fiscal yearthen ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis, Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios Based on 
Participation in the Public Employee Pension Plan of TCRS, the Schedule of Contributions Based on 
Participation in the Public Employee Pension Plan of TCRS, and the Schedule of Changes inOPEB Liability and 
Related Ratios on pages 5 through 13 and pages 41 through 43, respectively, be presented to supplement 
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required bythe Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), who considers itto be an essential part 
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information 
for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise BrightRidge's basic financial statements. The introductory section, supplementary information and 
other supplementary information sub-sections, as detailed within the table of contents, are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplementary information sub-section is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
supplementary information sub-section is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole.
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Johnson City Energy Authority dba 
BrightRidge

Independent Auditors' Report

The introductory section and other supplementary information sub-section have not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Change in Accounting Principle

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, in fiscal year 2018, BrightRidge adopted new accounting 
guidance, GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post-Employment Benefits Other 
than Pensions and Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 13, 
2018, on our consideration of BrightRidge's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness 
of BrightRidge's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards \n considering BrightRidge's internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance.

BLACKBURN, CHILDERS & STEAGALL, PLC 
Johnson City, Tennessee

November 13, 2018
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2018

Johnson City Energy Authority (JCEA), dba BrightRidge, is an energy authority created under the Municipal 
Energy Authority Act with the responsibility to provide electricity and related programs, services, and 
products. As the tenth largestofTVA's 154 local power companies, JCEA supplies electricity to around 78,700 
customers over nearly 350 square miles in Northeast Tennessee. The JCEA service area includes the City of 
Johnson City; the Town of Jonesborough; part of the City of Kingsport; all of Washington County; and parts of 
Sullivan, Carter, and Greene counties.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) for JCEA is designed to help the reader focus on 
significant financial activities and identify any meaningful changes in the financial position forthe fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2018. This MD&A is in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 34, Basic FinancialStatements-and Management's Discussion andAnalysis-for State and Local 
Governments. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the 
financial statements and supporting documents taken as a whole.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are to introduce the financial statements and provide an analytical overview of 
JCEA's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The financial statements are comprised of 
the basic financial statements and the notes to the financial statements which provide detailed supporting 
information.

Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements should provide a broad overview of JCEA's finances like those used by a private 
sector business. The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and offer short 
and long-term information about financial activities.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all JCEA's assets and deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between the two reported as net position. 
Net position is an indicator of financial status at a given point in time and can be tracked over time to assess 
whether the standing is improving or deteriorating. Net position increases when revenues exceed expenses. 
Improved financial position is shown by an increase to assets without an increase to liabilities, resulting in an 
increased net position.

The current fiscal year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Net Position. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event occurs, 
regardless of the timing of cash flows. The success of JCEA operations over the past fiscal year can be 
measured by this statement and it is useful to determine whether costs are successfully recovered through 
rates and other charges.

The Statement of Cash Flows reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from 
operating, investing, and financing activities. This statement provides details as to the sources of cash, the 
uses of cash, and the change in the cash balance during the reporting period, without consideration of the 
timing of the event.

5



JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2018

Financial Analysis

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position convey 
information about JCEA's activities highlighting the change in financial condition from one year to the next. 
Overtime, increases or decreases in net position may serve as an indicator of whether the financial position 
of JCEA is improving or declining. Other considerations for electric distributors are the influences of non- 
financial indicators such as economic conditions, population growth, weather, changes in governmental 
legislation, and energy efficiency.

Condensed Statement of Net Position is presented below:

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Dollar Change % ChangeFY 2018 FY 2017
Assets
Current and Other Assets 
Restricted Assets 
Capital Assets, Net
Total Assets

13,312,679
51,244

4,357,614

25.8%64,934,819
22,075,254

194,067,439

51,622,140
22,024,010

189,709,825
0.2%
2.3%

$ 281,077,512 $ 263,355,975 $ 17,721,537 6.7%

$ 144,044$ 4,861,023 $ 4,716,979 3.1%Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities
Current Liabilities 
Long-Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities

30.8%
-5.1%

26,539,568
49,434/21

8,184,964
(2,534,149)

34,724,532
46,900,272

$ 81,624,804 $ 75,973,989 $ 5,650,815 L4%

$ 848,811 $ 878,814 $ (30,003)Deferred Inflows of Resources -3.4%

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Unrestricted Net Position
Total Net Position

4.4%
14.1%
6.4%

158,938,739
44,526,181

152,189,078
39,031,073

6,749,661
5,495,108

$ 12,244,769$ 203,464,920 $ 191,220,151

Net position increased $12,244,769 to $203,464,920 in fiscal year 2018, up from $191,220,151 in fiscal year 
2017 for a 6.4% increase in total net position. The $12,244,769 gain in net position includes the effect of a 
prior period restatement of ($712,526). For fiscal year 2018, the management of JCEA implemented GASB 
Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions, 
and No. 85, Omnibus 2017. The net position of BrightRidge was restated to reflect the change in accounting 
principle. The impact of this restatement is a decrease to beginning net position of $712,526 for the 
beginning OPEB liability at the June 30, 2018 measurement date.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2018

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position is presented below:

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Dollar Change % ChangeFY 2017FY 2018

195,172,763
3,850,156

2,334,600
158,158

1.2%Electric Sales Revenue 
Other Operating Revenues

Total Operating Revenues

197,507,363
4,008,314 4.1%

$ 199,022,919 $ 2,492,758$ 201,515,677 1.3%

Operating Expenses
Purchased Power 
Other Operating Expenses 
Maintenance Expense 
Provision for Depreciation 
Tax Equivalents

Total Operating Expenses

1.2%149,158,111
13,851,055
7,737,170
8,857,205
2,259,975

1,732,483
(9,271)

588,975
133,889

3,184,361

150,890,594
13,841,784
8,326,145
8,991,094
5,444,336

-0.1%
7.6%
1.5%

140.9%
3.1%187,493,953 181,863,516 5,630,437

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (1,706,075) -37.6%(1,064,429) 641,646

Income before Transfer (2,496,033) -16.2%12,957,295 15,453,328

Transfer to City of Johnson City (3,016,572) -100.0%3,016,572

Change In Net Position 4.2%12,436,756 520,53912,957,295

7.5%177,863,339
920,056

13,356,812
(1,632,582)

Beginning Net Position
Prior Period (Restatement) Adjustment

Beginning Net Position Restated

191,220,151
(712,526) -177.4%

6.6%178,783,395 11,724,230190,507,625

Ending Net Position 12,244,769203,464,920 191,220,151

The change in net position from fiscal year 2017 to fiscal year 2018 is $12,244,769 or 6.4%.

Operating revenues increased by $2,492,758 or 1.3% during fiscal year 2018. Energy sold is represented in 
kilowatt hours (kWh). Total kWh sales for 2018 were 1,894,896,142 compared to 1,840,704,675 in 2017 
which is an increase of 54,191,467 kWh or 2.94%. Weather serves an important part in determining 
operating revenuefor any given year, and its influence is reflected in the comparison of degree days from one 
period to the next. Degree days are a simplified form of historical weather data and are commonly used in 
monitoring the relationship between energy consumption and outside air temperature. Total degree days for 
2018 were 5,362 compared to 4,741 for 2017 which represents a 13.10% increase in degree days.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2018

Total operating expenses for fiscal year 2018 are up by $5,630,437 or 3.1% over fiscal year 2017. Operating 
expenses include Purchased Power, Other Operating Expense, Maintenance Expense, Depreciation Expense, 
and Tax Equivalents.

The primary operating expense is Purchased Power. Purchased Power was $150,890,594 which represents 
80.48% of the total operating expenses of $187,493,953. For fiscal year 2018, this was $1,732,483 or 1.2% 
more than fiscal year 2017. JCEA must purchase all its power from the Tennessee Valley Authority (TVA) 
under an all-requirements contract with an initial term of 20 years beginning June 30,1985. The contract has 
been extended in 5-year terms beginning October 1,1997 and requires a 5-year written notice by either party 
to terminate. TVA bills JCEA for wholesale electricity based on demand and energy. The demand component 
of the wholesale power bill drives the average cost of purchased power. Demand (kW) is determined by the 
highest one hour of usage in kW each month. Energy is measured in kilowatt hours (kWh). The cost of 
purchased power remained relatively flat from fiscal year 2017 to fiscal year 2018 even with a 1.88% 
wholesale rate increase by TVA in October 2017. Weather patterns during fiscal year 2018 were more 
favorable than the prior year. An industry standard calculation referred to as load factor is used to measure 
the relationship of demand to kWh. The more kWh purchased per unit of peak demand the more the load 
factor improves, and the ultimate result is that the average cost of power decreases. Another key driver for 
the cost of purchased power being flat was an average reduction in the TVA fuel cost adjustment of just 
under 10%. This is a pass-through from TVA to our customers which represents the variable cost of fuel for 
generation and off-system purchases. The average realized rate for fiscal year 2018 was $0,075 per kWh for 
purchased powerwhile fiscal year 2017 was $0,076 per kWh for purchased power. JCEA has limited ability to 
control peak demands as the weather is the primary driver of consumption.

The chart on the next page visually represents the relationship between kWH (Energy) and Degree Days 
(Weather).
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2018

Other operating expenses were $13,841,784 for fiscal year 2018 as compared to $13,851,055 for fiscal year 
2017. This is a decrease of $9,271 or -0.1%. Other operating expenses include administrative and general, 
transmission, distribution, and customer service related expenses. Administrative and General Expenses for 
fiscal year 2018 were down $274,850 or -0.03% due to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 75, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions, and No. 85, Omnibus 
2017. Transmission expenses were down $28,142 or -13.23%. Distribution Expenses were down $5,015 or 
-0.17%. Customer Service related expenses were up $288,706 or 7.1%.

Maintenance expenses were up $588,975 or 7.6%. Further, depreciation expense is up $133,889 or 1.5%.

In lieu of taxes or tax equivalent payments are computed with authoritative guidance under Tennessee Code 
Annotated 7-52. Revenues, utility plant, and depreciation are all primary components of the formula. TVA, 
as our regulatory authority, reviews the JCEA computation of in lieu of taxes annually. Tax equivalents made 
to local taxing jurisdictions in ourservice area includingthe City of Johnson City were up $167,789 or 3.18%. 
The total in lieu of tax payment to the City was $4,149,145 in 2018 up $127,049 from 2017.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBABRIGHTRIDGE

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2018

In prior fiscal years, and specifically through the nine months ended March 31,2017, the payment to the City 
of Johnson City was classified as Transfer to the City of Johnson City, however, the payment to the City is now 
classified as an operating expense due to operating as an energy authority as of April 1, 2017. JCEA pays the 
maximum in lieu of tax payment allowed by state law and is the City of Johnson City's largest taxpayer.

Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses for fiscal year 2018 were down $641,646 or -37.6%. Interest income 
and other income was up $47,292. Debt expense was down $594,354, which represents interest paid on 
long-term debt and the amortization of the bond premium. When JCEA issued new debt on March 31,2017, 
the expected annual savings in interest expense is over $300,000 per year through 2033 due to favorable 
interest rates. JCEA pays bond principal and interest payments twice each year.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Condensed financial information relating to JCEA Capital Assets is presented below:

% Change
0.1%

Dollar Change
48,302

4,178,981
1,287,083
3,887,291

FY 2018
48,371,054

191,788,344
43,620,219

5,727,041

FY 2017
48,322,752

187,609,363
42,333,136

1,839,750

Transmission Plant 
Distribution Plant 
General Plant
Construction Work in Progress
Total Capital Assets

2.2%
3.0%

211.3%
$ 9,401,657$ 289,506,658 $ 280,105,001 3.4%

JCEA transmission and distribution facilities serve around 350 square miles which includes the City of 
Johnson City; the Town of Jonesborough; part of the City of Kingsport; all of Washington County; and parts of 
Sullivan, Carter, and Greene counties. Such facilities require significant annual capital and maintenance 
expenditures.

The investment in utility plant, at June 30, 2018 was $289,506,658 compared to $280,105,001 at June 30, 
2017, this includes utility plant additions of $9,778,684 and plant retirements of $4,264,313. JCEA's capital 
budget for fiscal year 2018 was $13,355,405. Additions during fiscal year 2018 include a new Midway 
substation in Jonesborough for $3,468,787 and refurbishment of substations for $349,835. For fiscal year 
2018 thirteen vehicles were purchased for $622,911, $329,073 was spent for metering equipment, dispatch 
center and heat and air improvements were made costing $543,000 and $112,000, respectively. Further, 
investments included $197,000 for the completion of the fiber network following the conclusion of the 
Flighway 36 State road project and 69kV pole replacement of $162,000.

Not considering large-scale projects, JCEA's normal renewal and replacement construction projects typically 
cost $6,000,000 to $7,000,000. JCEA's fiscal year 2018 capital budget includes a five-year projection for 
spending.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2018

These future capital budgets are planned to be funded out of cash and JCEA does not intend to issue new 
debt. The outstanding bond principal was $32,280,000 at June 30, 2018, compared to $34,480,000 at June 
30, 2017. Note that the Bond rating for JCEA is Moody's 'Aa2". JCEA's bonds are secured by the revenue of 
the energy authority.

More detailed information about the JCEA's assets and debt can be found in the notes to the financial 
statements.

Johnson City Energy Authority Highlights, Economic Factors, and Future

JCEA experienced growth of 429 customers for a 0.55% overall percentage growth this year. The following 
chart shows the number of customers for each classification for the past two years.

Change % Change
339

2018
67,562

9,139
1,048

2017
67,223

9,070
1,034

Residential 
Small Commercial 
Large Commercial/Industrial 
Street and Athletic Lighting 
Outdoor Lighting Only 
Total Customers

0.50%
0.76%
1.35%
0.69%
0.75%
0.55%

69
14

145 144 1
809 803 6

78.703 78.274 429

As customer growth has remained steady, energy sales have not remained on the same growth pattern. This 
pattern is mainly correlated to the national and local attention toward energy efficiency and conservation 
efforts. The chart on the next page visually represents the relationship between kWh (Energy) and Customer 
Growth.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2018

Since fiscal year July 2009, TVA has increased wholesale rates seven times per the following: 9.00% in 
October 2009; 3.08% in October 2011; 2.63% in October 2013; 2.61% in October 2014; 2.28% in October 
2015; 1.88% in October 2016; and 1.88% in October 2017. JCEA implemented rate increases of 1.9% in 
October 2015, 1.42% in October 2016, and 1.42% in October 2017, which were in addition to the TVA 
increases. Continued volatility on the cost of wholesale power due to demand charges necessitate the 
increase to stabilize margins. Beginning in October 2016, JCEA implemented a demand cost recovery 
adjustment referred to as "DCRA". The DCRA is a variable charge or credit applied to residential and small 
commercial customers. These customer classes do not pay a demand charge. To protect margins for 
operational and capital spending, this adjustment was created to recover excess demand charges paid to TVA. 
The adjustment was also set up to pay out a credit to customers when lower demand charges are paid to 
TVA. JCEA based the adjustment on the recent history of our normal load factor. When the monthly load 
factor is better than the normal monthly load factor, customers receive a credit adjustment and when the 
monthly load factor is lower than the normal monthly load factor, customers receive a charge adjustment. 
During fiscal year 2018, the DCRA recovered $1,314,949 to offset higher demand charges paid to TVA 
compared to $2,739,192 recovered in 2017. Without the DCRA, our revenue and our margin would have 
been reduced by this amount.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2018

Financial Contact

This discussion and analysis is designed to provide JCEA customers, investors, and other interested parties 
with a general overview of the financial position and results of operations. Questions concerningany of the 
information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Chief 
Financial Officer, Johnson City Energy Authority, 2600 Boones Creek Road, Johnson City, Tennessee 37615.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
June 30, 2018

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash on Hand and in Bank
Accounts Receivable - Customer Service, Net of Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts
Accounts Receivable - Rents and Other
Current Maturities of Notes Receivable
Inventories
Prepaid Expenses

$ 34,387,387
21,602,349 

689,263 
106,206 

7,353,680 
288,434

64,427,319Total Current Assets

CAPITAL ASSETS 
Land and Land Rights 
Construction in Progress 
Depreciable Capital Assets 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

5,401,940
5,727,041

278,377,677
(95,439,219)

194,067,439Net Capital Assets

RESTRICTED ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Long-Term Certificate of Deposit

21,075,254
1,000,000

Total Restricted Assets 22,075,254

OTHER ASSETS
Accounts Receivable - Customers - Heat Pumps 
Advance from Tennessee Valley Authority 
Notes Receivable, Net of Current Maturities

4,246,742
(4,246,742)

507,500

507,500Total Other Assets

281,077,512TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred Loss on Bond Refunding 
Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to the Pension

967,969
3,893,054

4,861,023TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

(Continued)
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
June 30, 2018

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable 
Customer Deposits 
Accrued Interest 
Accrued Salaries
Current Portion of Compensated Absences 
Current Maturities of Bonds Payable 
Current Maturities of Note Payable 
Other Current and Accrued Liabilities

25,668,465
5,281,756

239,200
261,972
519,041

2,390,000
76,000

288,098

Total Current Liabilities 34,724,532

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Bonds Payable, Net of Current Maturities and Unamortized Bond Premium 
Note Payable, Net of Current Maturities 
Compensated Absences, Net of Current Portion 
Net Pension Liability
Other Post-Employment Benefits Liability

33,706,669
392,666

1,970,723
5,077,331
5,752,883

46,900,272Total Long-Term Liabilities

81,624,804TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to the Pension
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Other Post-Employment Benefits

705,349
143,462

848,811TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Unrestricted

158,938,739
44,526,181

$ 203,464,920TOTAL NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

OPERATING REVENUES 
Sales of Electric Energy 

Residential
Large Lighting and Power 
Small Lighting and Power 
Street and Outdoor Lighting 
Unbilled Revenue 

Other Operating Revenues

$ 111,107,375 
66,123,236 
18,450,151 
3,528,367 

(1,701,766) 
4,008,314

Total Operating Revenues (Pledged as Security for Revenue Bonds) 201,515,677

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Operations

Power Purchased from Tennessee Valley Authority 
Other Operating Expenses 

Maintenance 
Provision for Depreciation 
Tax Equivalents

150,890,594
13,841,784
8,326,145
8,991,094
5,444,336

187,493,953Total Operating Expenses

14,021,724NET OPERATING INCOME

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest Income
Other Income
Interest Expense
Amortization of Bond Premium
Amortization of Deferred Loss on Bond Refunding

169,950
71,103

(1,497,529)
257,303
(65,256)

(1,064,429)Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

12,957,295CHANGE IN NET POSITION

191,220,151BEGINNING NET POSITION, JULY 1, 2017

PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENT
Implementation of GASB Statement No. 75 (712,526)

190,507,625BEGINNING NET POSITION, JULY 1, 2017, RESTATED

$ 203,464,920ENDING NET POSITION, JUNE 30, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

16



JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash Received from Electric Sales 
Cash Received from Rentals and Other Sales 
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services 
Cash Payments for Employee Services and Benefits 
Cash Payments for Tax Equivalents 
Change in Customer Deposits

$ 198,037,665 
4,115,333 

(154,382,720) 
(11,557,301) 

(5,444,336) 
338,764

31,107,405Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments Received on Note Receivable Related to USDA Grant Pass-Through 
Principal Paid on USDA Note Payable

76,000
(76,000)

0Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Payments Received on Note Receivable from Capital Contract 
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets 
Principal Paid on Capital Debt 
Interest Paid on Capital Debt 
Net Proceeds from Other Income

28,453
(14,034,550)

(2,200,000)
(1,635,416)

71,103

(17,770,410)Net Cash Used for Capital and Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest on Investments
Proceeds from Maturity of Restricted Long-Term Certificate of Deposit

169,950
1,000,000

1,169,950Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

14,506,945NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

40,955,696BEGINNING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JULY 1, 2017

$ 55,462,641ENDING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30, 2018

(Continued)
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO 
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

$ 14,021,724Operating Income
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities: 

Prior Period Restatement for the Implementation of GASB No. 75 for OPEB 
Depreciation Expense
Decrease in Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 

(Increase) Decrease in Assets:
Accounts Receivable 
Inventories 
Prepaid Expenses

Increase in Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to the Pension 
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:

Accounts Payable
Customer Deposits
Accrued Salaries
Compensated Absences
Other Current and Accrued Liabilities
Net Pension Liability
Other Post-Employment Benefits Liability 

Decrease in Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pension 
Increase in Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

(712,526)
9,676,936
(204,908)

637,321
(437,745)

43,903
(209,300)

7,558,867
338,764

28,860
202,622
156,745

(598,288)
634,433

(173,465)
143,462

$ 31,107,405Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FROM STATEMENT 
OF CASH FLOWS TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

$ 34,387,387
21,075,254

Cash on Hand and in Bank
Restricted Assets - Cash and Cash Equivalents

$ 55,462,641Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Fiscal Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Johnson City Energy Authority (JCEA) was formed April 1, 2017, as a political subdivision of the State of 
Tennessee, and is the new legal entity which replaced the former Johnson City Power Board. The JCEA did 
file with the State of Tennessee to continue "doing business as" (dba) the Johnson City Power Board or JCPB 
through October 3, 2017, at which time the JCEA filed a new dba name of BrightRidge. BrightRidge is a local 
power company ofthe Tennessee Valley Authority (TVA), furnishing electrical power to \A/ashington County 
and portions of other Upper East Tennessee counties, as purchased from TVA.

The basic financial statements of BrightRidge have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed bythe Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB). GASB is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and 
financial reporting principles.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the timing of recognizing revenues and expenses in the basic financial 
statements. The accompanying basic financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues and 
related assets are recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized when the obligation is incurred 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

New Accounting Pronouncements

During the fiscal year, BrightRidge implemented GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions, and No. 85, Omnibus 2017. The former establishes 
standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of 
resources, and expenses. For defined benefit other post-employment benefits (OPEB), as is the case with 
BrightRidge, this Statement identifies the methods and assumptions that are required to be used to project 
benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that 
present value to periods of employee service. The latter Statement addresses a variety of topics, including 
issues related to post-employment benefits. Specifically, as related to BrightRidge, this Statement has 
requirements for the presentation of payroll-related measures in required supplementary information for 
purposes of reporting by employers that provide OPEB. The net position of BrightRidge has been restated to 
reflect the change in accounting principle. The impact of this restatement is a decrease to beginning net 
position of $712,526 in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position for the beginning 
OPEB liability at the June 30, 2018 measurement date.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain 
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deposits and Investments

Cash on the Statement of Net Position includes cash on hand and demand deposits in a local bank. Various 
restrictions on deposits and investments, including repurchase agreements, are imposed by state statutes. 
These restrictions are summarized as follows.

DEPOSITS - All deposits with financial institutions must be insured or collateralized in an amount equal 
to 105% of the market value of uninsured deposits.

INVESTMENTS - BrightRidge is authorized to make direct investments in bonds, notes or treasury bills 
of the U.S. Government and obligations guaranteed by the U.S. Government or any of its agencies. 
These investments may not have a maturity greater than two years. BrightRidge may make 
investments with longer maturities if it follows various restrictions established by state law. It is also 
authorized to make investments in the State Pooled Investment Fund and in repurchase agreements. 
Repurchase agreements must be approved by the State Director of Local Finance and executed in 
accordance with procedures established by the State Funding Board.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, BrightRidge has invested certain restricted cash and cash equivalents 
into a restricted long-term certificate of deposit in the amount of $1,000,000 for insurance liabilities. This 
investment bears interest of 1.40% over its term of 12 months, and was approved by the Board of Directors.

Securities purchased under a repurchase agreement must be obligations of the U.S. Government or 
obligations guaranteed by the U.S. Government or any of its agencies. When repurchase agreements are 
executed, the purchase of the securities must be priced at least 2% below the market value of the securities 
on the day of purchase. No repurchase agreements existed as of June 30, 2018.

The carrying amount of BrightRidge's deposits with financial institutions was $55,444,541 at June 30, 2018, 
and the bank balance was $55,764,751.

The insurance of bank balances is as follows:

$Amount Insured by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) 
Amount Insured with State of Tennessee Bank Collateral Pool

689,490
55,075,261

$ 55,764,751

BrightRidge's policy for custodial credit rate risk on deposits is to follow state guidelines.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

BrightRidge's restricted cash and cash equivalents consist of money market accounts in the amount of 
$14,488,426, which are restricted for capital improvements, money market accounts in the amount of 
$5,512,647, which are restricted for bond principal and interest payments, a money market account in the 
amount of $1,021,035 which is restricted for insurance liabilities, and a money market account in the amount 
of $53,146, which is restricted for tax equivalent payments. All of these restrictions were approved by the 
Board of Directors. These funds in money market accounts are considered cash equivalents for purposes of 
the Statement of Cash Flows.

Inventories

Materials and supplies inventories are stated at average cost on a per item basis using the first-in, first-out 
method of costing.

Capital Assets

Land and land rights, buildings, machinery and equipment, and electrical distribution system are stated at 
historical cost and are defined as assets with an initial, individual cost of $1,000 or greater. Expenses for 
maintenance and repairs, which do not improve or extend the life of the asset, are charged to expense as 
incurred. Interest incurred during the construction of large projects is reflected in the capitalized value of the 
project. The assets are being depreciated on the straight-line method over the useful lives per guidelines of 
the TVA. When property is retired or otherwise disposed of, its average cost, together with its cost of 
removal less salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation; no gain or loss is recognized as per Federal 
Energy Regulation Commission (FERC) guidelines. Also, a disallowance of plant for rate-making purposes is 
recorded for the amount of capital contributions received resulting in a reduction in the cost of the related 
capital asset as per FERC guidelines and in accordance with guidance of the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board. The depreciation expense for the fiscal year ended June 30,2018 was $9,676,936 of which $685,842 
was charged to Other Operating Expenses.

Estimated useful lives of the various classes of depreciable capital assets are as follows:

Buildings
Office Equipment
Transportation and Equipment
Other Machinery and Equipment
Transmission and Power Distribution System

33 - 50 years 
3-10 years 
3-8 years 

8 - 25 years 
25 - 40 years
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents 
a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow 
of resources (expense) until then. BrightRidge has two items reported as deferred outflows: (1) the Deferred 
Loss on Bond Refunding is reported as a deferred outflow and is being amortized over the life of the 
refunding bonds, and (2) the Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to the Pension is related to differences 
between expected and actual experience and changes in assumptions, as well as BrightRidge's contributions 
made to the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS) during fiscal year 2018. The differences in 
experience and changes in assumptions are a result of the actuarial study for BrightRidge's agent multiple- 
employer pension plan through TCRS, and are being amortized over the average working lifetime of all 
participants. The contributions were made subsequent to the pension's measurement date of June 30,2017, 
and will be recognized as a reduction to the net pension liability in the following measurement period.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an 
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of 
resources (revenue) until that time. BrightRidge has two items reported as deferred inflows: (l)the Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to the Pension is related to differences between expected and actual 
experience and projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments. These differences are a result of 
the actuarial study for BrightRidge's agent multiple-employer pension plan through TCRS. The differences in 
experience are being amortized over the average working lifetime of all participants, and the net difference 
in earnings on pension plan investments is being amortized over a five-year period (staggered based on 
measurement year). (2) the Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Other Post-Employment Benefits is 
related to the changes in assumptions for the other post-employment benefits (OPEB) liability which is a 
result of the actuarial study for BrightRidge's single-employer OPEB plan. These changes are being amortized 
over the average service of plan participants.

Compensated Absences

Employees earn various vacation days determined on years of service. Vacation days can be accumulated to 
a maximum of 40 days, which are payable upon separation of employment. Sick leave is granted after 90 
days of employment. The employee earns one day for each one full month employed. Sick leave can be 
accumulated with no limitation as to the number of days. No obligation exists for payment of accumulated 
sick leave upon termination for reasons other than death or retirement. On date of retirement or death, 
BrightRidge is obligated for 75% of accumulated days on eligible employees.

A liability for compensated absences and related fringe benefits is reflected on the Statement of Net Position 
at June 30, 2018, in the amount of $2,489,764. The portion of this liability expected to be paid within one 
year is classified as a current liability and the remainder as a long-term liability.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Net Position

Net position is the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources minus liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources. The Net Investment in Capital Assets is calculated as capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation, plus the deferred loss on bond refunding, less any outstanding debt related to the 
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there 
are legal limitations imposed on its use by external restrictions by other governments, creditors or grantors. 
No such restrictions existed at June 30, 2018.

Long-Term Obligations

In the basic financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities. 
The bond premium is deferred and amortized over the life of the related bonds. Bonds payable are reported 
net of the applicable bond premium.

Pension

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to the pension, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of 
BrightRidge's participation in the Public Employee Retirement Plan of TCRS, and additions to/deductions 
from BrightRidge's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by 
TCRS for the Public Employee Retirement Plan. For this purpose, benefits (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms of the Public 
Employee Retirement Plan of TCRS. Investments are reported at fair value.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering 
goods. The principal operating revenues of BrightRidge are charges to customers for sales and services. 
Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, amortization and 
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as 
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Budgets

Under the by-laws, management must submit an annual budget to the Board of Directors for approval. 
BrightRidge is not required to demonstrate statutory compliance with budgets. Accordingly, budgetary data 
is not included in the basic financial statements. All budgets are prepared in accordance with bond 
covenants. Unexpended appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018

NOTE 2 - NOTES RECEIVABLE

BrightRidge entered into a 10-year agreement with a local university in November 2012 for $288,739. The 
note had a carrying balance at June 30, 2018 of $151,373. The note is receivable at $3,206 per month for 120 
months. The note bears interest at a rate of 6.00% per fiscal year.

BrightRidge entered into a 10-year loan agreement with an international manufacturing company in August 
2014 for $760,000, which pertained to an equivalent note payable to the United States Department of 
Agriculture (USDA), Rural Economic Development from federal grant funds received for pass-through to this 
international manufacturing company (see NOTE 8). BrightRidge is obligated to USDA Rural Economic 
Development, and this international manufacturing company is obligated to BrightRidge. The note is 
receivable $6,333 per month for 120 months, bearing no interest. Management deems the imputed interest 
due on the June 30, 2018 balance of $462,333 to be immaterial.

In conjunction with the note receivable from an international manufacturing company above, BrightRidge 
was named as beneficiary in an irrevocable standby commercial letterof credit on August 21, 2014 (start of 
Year 1) with a current expiration date of August 21, 2018 (end of Year 4) from a local financial institution in 
the amount of $760,000. This letter shall automatically renew for up to six additional consecutive one-year 
periods, with annual reductions in amount to coincide with the aforementioned matching note payable 
balance to USDA Rural Economic Development over the term of that note, being ten years, as follows:

$ 760.000
684.000
608.000
532.000
456.000
380.000
304.000
228.000 
152,000
76,000

Yearl 
Year 2 
Year 3 
Year 4 
Year 5 
Year 6 
Year 7 
Year 8 
Year 9 

Year 10

NOTE 3 - RISK MANAGEMENT

BrightRidge carries insurance coverage for cyber and privacy, directors and officers, commercial crime, 
property, automobiles, workman's compensation, and employee group health insurance through various 
external insurance carriers. There was no reduction in insurance coverage from the prior fiscal year, and 
BrightRidge has not had any settlements in the last three fiscal years which were not covered by insurance, 
other than a single instance in fiscal year 2016 for a litigation settlement.

24
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DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018

NOTE 3 - RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Since July 1,1986, BrightRidge has been seif-insured for general liability. Funds were originally set aside by 
the Board of Directors in the amount of $1,000,000 and have accumulated to $2,021,035 at June 30, 2018, 
$1,021,035 of which is included in restricted cash and cash equivalents and another $1,000,000 is included in 
restricted long-term certificate of deposit. For the fiscal year ended June 30,2018, no settlements were paid 
from these funds.

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:

Ending
Balance

Beginning
Balance DecreasesIncreases

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 
Land and Land Rights 
Construction in Progress 

Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated

$ 5,400,640
1,839,750

5,401,940
5,727,041

1,300
7,270,330 (3,383,039)

(3,383,039) 11,128,9817,271,6307,240,390

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated 
Buildings 
Office Equipment 
Transportation Equipment 
Other Machinery and Equipment 
Transmission and Power 

Distribution System
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated

(209,373)
(166,716)
(313,423)

(16,556)

29,351,133
3,924,506
6,928,039
7,503,417

29,347,005
3,311,898
6,618,551
7,142,563

213,501
779,324
622,911
377,410

(3,558,247) 230,670,582226,444,594 7,784,235
(4,264,315) 278,377,677272,864,611 9,777,381

Accumulated Depreciation 
Buildings 
Office Equipment 
Transportation Equipment 
Other Machinery and Equipment 
Transmission and Power 

Distribution System 
Total Accumulated Depreciation

(9,777,594)
(1,663,942)
(4,313,369)
(3,029,055)

(9,357,597)
(1,630,823)
(3,890,988)
(2,632,803)

(627,555)
(199,835)
(685,842)
(412,853)

207,558
166,716
263,461

16,601

(76,655,259)(7,750,851)(72,882,965) 3,978,557
(95,439,219)(90,395,176) (9,676,936) 4,632,893

182,938,458368,578Net Capital Assets, Being Depreciated 182,469,435 100,445

$ 189,709,825 (3,014,461) 194,067,4397,372,075Net Capital Assets
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30,2018

NOTE 5 - PENSION PLAN

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description

Employees of BrightRidge are provided a defined benefit pension plan through the Public Employee 
Retirement Plan, an agent multiple-employer pension plan administered by theTCRS. TheTCRS was created 
by state statute under Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA) Title 8, Chapters 34-37. TheTCRS Board of Trustees 
is responsible for the proper operation and administration of the TCRS. The Tennessee Treasury 
Department, an agency in the legislative branch of state government, administers the plans ofthe TCRS. The 
TCRS issues a publically available financial report that can be obtained at www.treasurv.state.tn.us/tcrs.

Benefits Provided

TCA Title 8, Chapters 34-37 establishes the benefit terms and can be amended only by the Tennessee 
General Assembly. The chief legislative body may adopt the benefit terms permitted by statute. Members 
are eligible to retire with an unreduced benefit at age 60 with five years of service credit or after 30 years of 
service credit regardless of age. Benefits are determined by a formula using the member's highest five 
consecutive year average compensation and the member's years of service credit. Reduced benefits for early 
retirement are available at age 55 and vested. Members vest with five years of service credit. In addition, per 
a resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of BrightRidge in March 1998, a member may retire prior to 
age 55 upon attaining 25 years of creditable service. In this situation, the member's benefit will be the 
actuarial equivalent of the benefit computation for early service retirement that the member could have 
received at age 55. Service related disability benefits are provided regardless of length of service. Five years 
of service is required for non-service related disability eligibility. The service related and non-service related 
disability benefits are determined in the same manner as a service retirement benefit but are reduced 10 
percent and include projected service credits. A variety of death benefits are available under various 
eligibility criteria.

Member and beneficiary annuitants are entitled to automatic cost-of-living adjustments (COLAs) after 
retirement. A COLA is granted each July for annuitants retired prior to the 2nd of July ofthe previous year. 
The COLA is based on the change in the consumer price index (CPI) during the prior calendar year, capped at 
three percent, and applied to the current benefit. No COLA is granted if the change in the CPI is less than 
one-half percent. A one percent COLA is granted if the CPI change is between one-half percent and one 
percent. A member who leaves employment may withdraw their employee contributions, plus any 
accumulated interest.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018

NOTE 5 - PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued)

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At the measurement date of June 30, 2017, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

inactive Employees or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits 
inactive Employees Entitled to but not yet Receiving Benefits 
Active Employees

98
191
173

Total Employees 462

Contributions

Contributions for employees are established in the statutes governing the TCRS and may only be changed by 
the Tennessee General Assembly. Employees contribute five percent of salary. BrightRidge makes employer 
contributions at the rate set by the Board of Trustees as determined by an actuarial valuation. Forthe fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2018, the employer contributions for BrightRidge were $1,666,120 based on a rate of 
13.42 percent of covered payroll. By law, employer contributions are required to be paid. The TCRS may 
intercept BrightRidge's state shared taxes if required employer contributions are not remitted. The 
employer's ADC and member contributions are expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by members 
during the year, the cost of administration, as well as an amortized portion of any unfunded liability.

Net Pension Liability

BrightRidge's net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability as of June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

inflation 2.50 percent

Graded salary ranges from 8.75 to 3.45 percent based on 
age, including inflation, averaging 4.00 percent

Salary Increases

7.25 percent, net of pension plan investment expenses, 
including inflation

Investment Rate of Return

Cost-of-Living Adjustment 2.25 percent
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NOTE 5 - PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions [Continued)

Mortality rates were based on actual experience including an adjustment for some anticipated improvement.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study performed for the period July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2016. The demographic 
assumptions were adjusted to more closely reflect actual and expected future experience.

Changes in Assumptions

In fiscal year 2017, the following assumptions were changed: decreased inflation rate from 3.00 percent to 
2.50 percent; decreased the investment rate of return from 7.50 percent to 7.25 percent; decreased the cost- 
of-living adjustment from 2.50 percent to 2.25 percent; decreased salary growth graded ranges from an 
average of 4.25 percent to an average of 4.00 percent; and modified mortality assumptions.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was established by theTCRS Board of 
Trustees in conjunction with the June 30, 2016 actuarial experience study. A blend of future capital market 
projections and historical market returns was used in a building-block method in which a best-estimate of 
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) 
is developed for each major asset class. These best-estimates are combined to produce the long-term 
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation of 2.50 percent. The best-estimates of geometric real rates of 
return and the TCRS investment policy target asset allocation of each major asset class are summarized in 
the following table:

Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return Target AllocationAsset Class

5.69%
5.29%
6.36%
5.79%
2.01%
4.32%
0.00%

31%U.S. Equity
Developed Market International Equity 
Emerging Market International Equity 
Private Equity and Strategic Lending 
U.S. Fixed Income 
Real Estate 
Short-Term Securities

14%
4%
20%
20%
10%
1%

100%

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was established by the TCRS Board of 
Trustees as 7.25 percent based on a blending of the factors described above.
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NOTE 5 - PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25 percent. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current rate 
and that contributions from BrightRidge will be made at the actuarially determined contribution rate 
pursuant to an actuarial valuation in accordance with the funding policy of theTCRS Board of Trustees and as 
required to be paid by state statute. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position 
was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive 
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Increase (Decrease)

Plan Fiduciary Net 
Position

Net Pension 
Liability
(a)-(b)

Total Pension 
Liability

(a) (b)

$ 50,988,415 5,675,61945,312,796Balance at June 30, 2016 
Changes for the Fiscal Year:
Service Cost 
Interest
Differences between Expected and Actual 

Experience
Changes in Assumptions 
Contributions - Employer 
Contributions - Employees 
Net Investment Income 
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of 

Employee Contributions 
Administrative Expense 
Net Changes

928,967
3,803,875

928,967
3,803,875

626,009
1,483,160

(1,694,199)
(631,222)

(5,129,570)

626,009
1,483,160

1,694,199
631,222

5,129,570

(2,398,110) (2,398,110)
(14,692) 14,692

(598,288)4,443,901 5,042,189

$ 55,432,316 5,077,33150,354,985Balance at June 30, 2017
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NOTE 5 - PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of BrightRidge calculated using the discount rate of 7.25 
percent, as well as what the net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 
that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.25 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.25 percent) than the current 
rate:

Current 
Discount Rate 

(7.25%)
1% Increase 

(8.25%)
1% Decrease 

(6.25%)

(1,248,095)$ 12,629,843Net Pension Liability (Asset) 5,077,331

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related 
to the Pension

Pension Expense

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, BrightRidge recognized pension expense of $685,068.

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, BrightRidge reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to the pension from the following sources:

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Differences between Expected and 
Actual Experience

Net Difference between Projected and 
Actual Earnings on Pension Plan 
Investments 

Changes in Assumptions 
Contributions Subsequent to the 

Measurement Date of June 30, 2017 
Total

$ 929,169 694,679

10,670
1,297,765

(not applicable)1,666,120
$ 705,3493,893,054
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NOTE 5 - PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related 
to the Pension (Continued)

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources (Continued]

The amount shown above for "Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date of June 30, 2017," will 
be recognized as a reduction to the net pension liability in the following measurement period.

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the 
pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30:
2019 S (36,059)

639,620
257,308
(59,018)
192,507
527,227

2020
2021
2022
2023

Thereafter

In the table shown above, positive amounts will increase pension expense while negative amounts will 
decrease pension expense.

NOTE 6 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT COMMITMENTS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)

A Brief Description of the Retiree Life and Medical Insurance Plans

BrightRidge, as a single employer, offers multiple life and medical post-employment benefits which are 
summarized below. These benefits are approved by the Board of Directors and require their approval for 
amendment. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in GASB Statement No. 75, 
paragraph 4.

Employees and pre-65 retirees have a bundled PRO Medical plan and a 
Health Reimbursement Account (HRA) plan offered through BlueCross 
BlueShield of Tennessee.

a. Plan Types:

Effective October 25, 2016, upon reaching age 65, each retiree will be 
enrolled in the Retiree HRA program.

Life insurance is through MetLife.
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NOTE 6 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT COMMITMENTS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) 
(CONTINUED)

A Brief Description of the Retiree Life and Medical Insurance Plans (Continued)

30 years of service, or age 60 with five years of service 
Early retirement - 25 years of service prior to age 55 
Early retirement-vested service at age 55 
Service-related disability for any length of service 
Non-service-related disability with five years of service

b. Eligibility:

BrightRidge pays approximately 75% of the PPO Medical plan premium for 
the pre-65 retirees. In addition, BrightRidge reimburses the HRA deductible 
fora maximum annual benefit of $2,000 per participant. At January 1, 2018, 
this maximum annual benefit per participant increased to $4,000.

c. Benefit/Cost Sharing:

BrightRidge provides an annual HRA reimbursement of $2,231 or $2,434for 
the post-65 retirees who were retired prior to October 25,2016. BrightRidge 
provides an annual HRA reimbursement of $1,800 for existing employees as 
of September 1, 2016, upon retirement and reaching age 65. Employees 
hired after September 1, 2016 are not eligible for the Retiree HRA Program.

BrightRidge reimburses the HRA deductible for the retiree's spouse, for a 
maximum annual benefit of $2,000 per participant. The spouse pays 100% of 
the medical premium. At January 1, 2018, this maximum annual benefit per 
participant increased to $4,000.

d. Spouse Benefit:

e. Surviving Spouse Benefit: Yes, same as spouse benefit above.

/. Annual Medical Premium: Effective January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017

Retiree
ContributionPlan Premium

$$ 6,070
$ 12,695

1,533
9,055

Pre-65 Retiree
Pre-65 Retiree and Spouse $

Effective January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018

Retiree
ContributionPlan Premium

$ 6,383
$ 13,351

$ 1,533
9,055

Pre-65 Retiree
Pre-65 Retiree and Spouse $

Upon retirement, all retirees receive a $25,000 life insurance policy.g. Life:
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NOTE 6 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT COMMITMENTS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) 
(CONTINUED)

A Brief Description of the Retiree Life and Medical Insurance Plans (Continued)

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At the actuarial valuation date of July 1, 2017, the following were covered by the benefit terms:

80Inactives Receiving Benefits 
Inactives Not Receiving Benefits 
Actives

0
174
254Total

Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of plan members and BrightRidge are based on pay-as-you-go financing 
requirements.

OPEB Liability

BrightRidge's OPEB liability was measured based on an actuarial valuation performed as of July 1,2017, with 
a projection to June 30, 2018, and a measurement date of June 30, 2018.

Actuarial Assumptions

3.58 percent as of June 30, 2017 and 3.87 percent as of June 30, 2018, 
based on a Bond Buyer's Bond Index

Discount Rate

RP-2000 Combined Fully Generational Mortality table with projection scaleMortality
BB

It was assumed that employees would terminate employment in 
accordance with the rates in the following two-year and ultimate table for 
both males and females:

Termination Rates

Male
Ultimate

Female
Ultimate

2nd Year 
Employment Employment

1st Year
Age

9.10%
2.50%
2.20%
1.90%
1.60%

11.10%
3.50%
3.00%
2.40%
1.90%

24.30%
20.40%
18.50%
16.50%
14.60%

20.00%
15.10%
13.90%
12.70%
11.50%

30
40
45
50
55
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NOTE 6 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT COMMITMENTS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) 
(CONTINUED)

OPEB Liability (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued]

It was assumed that the following percentage of eligible employees would 
retire each year:

Retirement Rates

RateAgeAge Rate
24.40%
22.10%
19.80%
17.50%
15.20%
12.90%
10.60%
8.30%

100.00%

I. 50% 
4.00% 
6.50% 
9.00%
II. 50% 
21.50% 
14.50% 
16.00% 
29.00% 
26.70%

6750-57
6858

59 69
7060
7161
7262
7363

64 74
7565

66

It was assumed that health care costs would increase in accordance with 
the trend rates in the following table:

Health Care Trend Rates

Medical
Rates

Medicare 
Part B RatesYear

5.00%
5.00%
5.00%
5.00%
5.00%
5.00%
5.00%

8.00%
7.50%
7.00%
6.50%
6.00%
5.50%
5.00%

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023+

It was assumed that 40 percent of the male and 40 percent of the female 
employees who elect retiree health care coverage for themselves would 
also elect coverage for their spouse upon retirement. It was assumed that 
male spouses are three years older than their wives and female spouses 
are three years younger than the retiree. For current retirees, actual 
census information was used.

Percent Married
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018

NOTE 6 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT COMMITMENTS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) 
(CONTINUED)

OPEB Liability (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions [Continued)

It was assumed that 100 percent of the current active employees covered 
under the active plan on the day before retirement would enroll in the 
retiree medical plan upon retirement.

Participation Rate

Included in premiums usedAdministrative Expenses

3.50 percent annuallyParticipant Salary Increases

2.50 percent annuallyPayroll Growth Rate

2.50 percent annuallyRate of Inflation

Conventional insured equivalent premiums were age-graded on the current 
participants in the medical plan.

Per Capita Claims Cost

Entry Age Actuarial Cost MethodActuarial Method

Changes in the OPEB Liability

Increase (Decrease)

Total OPEB 
Liability

$Balance at June 30, 2017 
Changes for the Fiscal Year:
Service Cost 
Interest
Changes in Assumptions 
Benefit Payments 
Net Changes

5,830,976

199,823
210,132

(162,797)
(325,251)

(78,093)

$Balance at June 30, 2018 5,752,883
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018

NOTE 6 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT COMMITMENTS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) 
(CONTINUED)

Changes in the OPEB Liability (Continued)

Sensitivity of the OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the OPEB liability of BrightRidge calculated using the discount rate of 3.87 percent, as 
well as what the OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point 
lower (2.87 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.87 percent) than the current rate:

Current 
Discount Rate 

(3.87%)
1% Decrease 

(2.87%)
1% Increase 

(4.87%)

$ 6,343,180OPEB Liability 5,752,883 5,238,429

Sensitivity of the OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Trend Rate

The following presents the OPEB liability of BrightRidge calculated using the health care trend rate of 8.00 
percent decreasing to 5.00 percent, as well as what the OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a 
health care trend rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (7.00 percent decreasing to 4.00 percent) or 1- 
percentage-point higher (9.00 percent decreasing to 6.00 percent) than the current rate:

Current Health 
Care Trend Rate 

(8.00% 
decreasing to 

5.00%)

1% Decrease 
(7.00% 

decreasing to 
4.00%)

1% Increase 
(9.00%

decreasing to 
6.00%)

$ 5,544,044OPEB Liability 5,752,883 5,993,285

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB

OPEB Expense

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, BrightRidge recognized OPEB expense of $323,131.

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, BrightRidge reported only a deferred inflow of resources related to 
OPEB from a change in assumptions in the amount of $143,462.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018

NOTE 6 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT COMMITMENTS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) 
(CONTINUED)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB (Continued)

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources (Continued)

The amount reported as a deferred inflow of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense 
as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30:
2019
2020

$ (19,335)
(19,335)
(19,335)
(19,335)
(19,335)
(46,787)

2021
2022
2023

Thereafter

In the table shown above, negative amounts will decrease OPEB expense.

NOTE 7 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

BrightRidge offers its employees participation in an optional deferred compensation plan, the Johnson City 
Energy Authority 457(b) Plan (the Plan). This Plan is available to all full-time employees. It permits all 
eligible employees to contribute pre-tax or post-tax dollars into the Plan, via a percentage of eligible 
compensation, which is defined as W-2 wages plus elective contributions, up to certain limits prescribed by 
the Internal Revenue Service. Elective contributions are amounts contributed by BrightRidge at the 
employee's election to a qualified plan. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until 
termination, retirement, deployment, death, or unforeseeable emergency circumstances. The Plan assets 
are in custodial accounts with the Trust Company and are not reflected in the assets of BrightRidge.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:

Ending
Balance

Due Within 
One Year

Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions

Revenue Bonds 
Revenue Bonds Payable 
Premium

Total Revenue Bonds

S 34,480,000 
4,073,972

(2,200,000)
(257,303)

32,280,000
3,816,669

2,390,000

(2,457,303)0 36,096,669 2,390,00038,553,972

(76,000)
(384,895)

Note Payable 
Compensated Absences

468,666
2,489,764

76,000
519,041

544,666
2,287,142 .587,517

$ 41,385,780 (2,918,198)Total Long-Term Debt 39,055,099 2,985,041587,517

Bonds Payable

On March 31, 2017, BrightRidge refunded and defeased in substance the outstanding Electric System 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2007A and 2008, as issued in the name of the prior entity, Johnson City Power Board. 
On that same date. Electric System Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 were issued by the new entity, JCEA. The 
defeased Series 2007A bonds, with varying outstanding maturity dates at the time of refunding from May 1, 
2017 through May 1, 2032, were called and redeemed on May 1, 2017 for the outstanding balance of 
$18,075,000. The defeased Series 2008 bonds, with varying outstanding maturity dates at the time of 
refunding from May 1, 2017 through May 1, 2033, were called and redeemed on May 1, 2017 in the amount 
of $910,000, leaving remaining defeased bonds of $21,630,000, which are not included on BrightRidge's 
financial statements as of June 30, 2018. The remaining $21,630,000 of defeased bonds were called and 
redeemed on May 1, 2018.

The advance refunding resulted in an economic loss (difference between the present values of the old and 
new debt service payments) of $1,049,539, which is being amortized over the life of the bonds.

On March 31, 2017, BrightRidge issued Electric System Revenue Bonds, Series 2017, totaling $34,480,000 
with interest rates from 3.00% - 5.00% and maturity of May 2033. The interest is payable semiannually on 
May 1 and November 1 of each fiscal year with the principal payments due on May 1. The revenue of the 
system is pledged as security for the debt.

38



JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Bonds Payable (Continued)

Debt service requirements for the fiscal years subsequent to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 are as 
follo\A/s:

Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30 Principal TotalInterest

$ 2,390,000
2.490.000
2.585.000
2.685.000
2.830.000
8.910.000 

10,390,000

1,435,200
1.339.600 
1,240,000
1.136.600
1.002.350
3.554.350 
1,242,250

3,825,200
3.829.600 
3,825,000
3.821.600 
3,832,350

12,464,350
11,632,250

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

2024-2028
2029-2033

$ 32,280,000 10,950,350 43,230,350

Changes in the Deferred Loss on Bond Refunding for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 were as follows:

Ending
Balance

Beginning
Balance ReductionsAdditions

Deferred Loss on Bond 
Refunding $ 1,033,225 (65,256) 967,969

Note Payable

In June 2014, BrightRidge entered into a promissory note agreement with USDA Rural Economic 
Development as a result of federal loan funds received in August 2014 for pass-through to an international 
manufacturing company for construction of their new facility in rural Piney Flats, Tennessee. This $760,000 
note payable has a term often years with 0% interest, with imputed interest being deemed immaterial. 
Principal payments of $6,333 are due monthly. The balance at June 30, 2018 is $468,666.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Note Payable (Continued)

Debt service requirements for the fiscal years subsequent to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 are as 
follows:

Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30 Principal TotalInterest

$ 76,000
76,000
76,000
76,000
76,000
88,666

2019
2020 
2021

76,000
76,000
76,000
76,000
76,000
88,666

2022
2023

2024-2025

$ 468,666 0 468,666

NOTE 9 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

During fiscal year 2018, the Board of Directors, TV A, and the Office of the Tennessee Comptroller of the 
Treasury approved a business plan for a new BrightRidge division for the retail sale of broadband services. 
This new division is expected to start-up in fiscal year 2019. Subsequent to June 30, 2018, the BrightRidge 
Board of Directors passed a resolution, which was subsequently approved by TVA, approving a 3-year 
staggered drawdown loan agreement totaling $35 million from the current electric division to this new 
broadband division.

BrightRidge has evaluated subsequent events through November 13, 2018, the date which the financial 
statements were available to be issued.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS BASED ON 

PARTICIPATION IN THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PENSION PLAN OF TCRS 
Last Fiscal Year Ending June 30

Schedule 1

2015 2016 20172014

Total Pension Liability 
Service Cost 
Interest
Differences between Expected and Actual Experience 
Changes in Assumptions
Benefit Payments, including Refunds of Employee Contributions 
Net Change in Total Pension Liability

S 863,049 
3,394,641 
(790,970)

886,120
3,483,216

667,467

908,535
3,677,919
(497,971)

928,967
3,803,875

626,009
1,483,160

(2,398,110)(2,152,107) (2,465,462) (2,460,906)
2,571,341 1,627,577 4,443,9011,314,613

50,988,415Total Pension Liability - Beginning 
Total Pension Liability - Ending (a)

45,474,884 46,789,497 49,360,838
$ 46,789,497 $ 49,360,838 50,988,415 55,432,316

Pian Fiduciary Net Position 
Contributions - Employer 
Contributions - Employees 
Net Investment Income
Benefit Payments, including Refunds of Employee Contributions
Administrative Expense
Net Change in Pian Fiduciary Net Position

$ 1,574,379 
567,549 

6,171,384 
(2,152,107) 

(8,578)

1,594,572
593,982

1,174,476
(2,460,906)

(13,315)

1,694,199
631,222

5,129,570
(2,398,110)

(14,692)

1,577,102
587,572

1,331,964
(2,465,462)

(9,074)
888,809 5,042,1896,152,627 1,022,102

45,312,796Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)

37,249,258 43,401,885 44,423,987
$ 44,423,987$ 43,401,885 45,312,796 50,354,985

$ 3,387,612Net Pension Liability - Ending (a) - (b) 4,936,851 5,675,619 5,077,331

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of Total Pension Liability 92.76% 90.00% 88.87% 90.84%

$ 11,881,393S 11,350,967 S 11,751,752 $ 12,624,437Covered Payroll

42.01% 47.77% 40.22%Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 29.84%

Notes to Schedule:

Changes in Assumptions
In fiscal year 2017, amounts reported as changes in assumptions resulted from changes to the inflation rate, investment rate of return, cost- 
of-living adjustment, salary growth and mortality improvements.

GASB 68 requires a 10-year schedule for this data to be presented starting with the implementation of GASB 68. The information in this 
schedule is not required to be presented retroactively prior to the implementation date. Fiscal years will be added to this schedule in future 
fiscal years until 10 fiscal years of information is available.

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS BASED ON PARTICIPATION 

IN THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PENSION PLAN OF TCRS 
Last Fiscal Year Ending June 30

Schedule 2

20182015 2016 20172014

$ 1,574,379 1,694,199 1,666,120Actuarially Determined Contribution 
Contributions in relation to the 

Actuarially Determined Contribution 
Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

1,577,102 1,594,572

1,594,572 1,694,199 1,666,1201,574,379 1,577,102
S 00 00 0

S 11,350,967 12,624,437 12,415,20311,751,752 11,881,393Covered Payroll
Contributions as a Percentage of 

Covered Payroll 13.42% 13.42% 13.42%13.87% 13.42%

GASB 68 requires a 10-year schedule for this data to be presented starting with the implementation of GASB 68. The information in this 
schedule is not required to be presented retroactively prior to the implementation date. Fiscal years will be added to this schedule in 
future fiscal years until 10 fiscal years of information is available.

Notes to Schedule:

Valuation Date
Actuarially-determined contribution rates for fiscal year 2018 were calculated based on the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates
Entry Age NormalActuarial Cost Method

Level Dollar, Closed (not to exceed 20 years)

Varies by Year

10-year smoothed within a 20 percent corridor to market value

Amortization Method

Remaining Amortization Period

Asset Valuation

Inflation 3.00 percent

Graded salary ranges from 8.97 to 3.71 percent based on age, including inflation 

7.50 percent, net of investment expense, including inflation 

Pattern of retirement determined by experience study

Customized table based on actual experience including an adjustment for some 
anticipated improvement

Salary Increases

Investment Rate of Return

Retirement Age

Mortality

Cost-of-Living Adjustments 2.50 percent

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

Last Fiscal Year Ending June 30

Schedule 3

2018

Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost 
Interest
Changes in Assumptions 
Benefit Payments
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability

$ 199,823
210,132

(162,797)
(325,251)

(78,093)

5,830,976Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 
Total OPEB Liability - Ending $ 5,752,883

$ 11,608,049Covered Payroll

Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 49.56%

Notes to Schedule:

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in GASB Statement No. 75, paragraph 4 to pay 
related benefits.

Changes in Assumptions
In fiscal year 2018, discount rates changes from 3.58 percent at June 30, 2017 to 3.87 percent at June 30, 
2018.

GASB 75 requires a 10-year schedule for this data to be presented starting with the implementation of GASB 
75. The information in this schedule is not required to be presented retroactively prior to the 
implementation date. Fiscal years will be added to this schedule in future fiscal years until 10 fiscal years of 
information is available.

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

SCHEDULE OF BOND PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS - 
2017 REFUNDING ISSUE 

June 30, 2018

Schedule 4

Total
Requirements

Interest
Rate PrincipalFiscal Year Ending Interest

$ 1,435,200
1.339.600 
1,240,000
1.136.600 
1,002,350

860,850
779,100
727.800
639.550 
547,050
449.550 
347,300
239.800 
149,600
56,000

3,825,200
3.829.600
3.825.000
3.821.600 
3,832,350 
2,495,850 
2,489,100
2.492.800
2.489.550 
2,497,050
2.494.550 
2,497,300
2.494.800
2.489.600
1.656.000

6-30-2019
6-30-2020
6-30-2021
6-30-2022
6-30-2023
6-30-2024
6-30-2025
6-30-2026
6-30-2027
6-30-2028
6-30-2029
6-30-2030
6-30-2031
6-30-2032
6-30-2033

4.00%
4.00%
4.00%
5.00%
5.00%
5.00%
3.00%
5.00%
5.00%
5.00%
5.00%
5.00%
4.00%
4.00%
3.50%

2.390.000
2.490.000
2.585.000
2.685.000
2.830.000
1.635.000
1.710.000
1.765.000
1.850.000
1.950.000
2.045.000
2.150.000
2.255.000
2.340.000
1.600.000

$ 32,280,000 10,950,350 43,230,350

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

CHANGES IN STATEMENT OF NET POSITION ACCOUNTS (UNAUDITED)
June 30, 2018

Schedule 5

A comparison of the Statements of Net Position at June 30, 2018 and 2017 is shown below.

Increase
(Decrease)2017 (Restated)2018

$ 289,506,658Capital Assets 280,105,001 9,401,657

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (95,439,219) (90,395,176) (5,044,043)

Net Capital Assets 194,067,439 189,709,825 4,357,614

(54,961)Plus: Other Assets 22,582,754 22,637,715

Plus: Deferred Outflows of Resources 4,716,979 144,0444,861,023

51,008,435 13,418,884Current Assets 64,427,319

(26,539,568) (8,184,964)Less: Current Liabilities (34,724,532)

Working Capital 29,702,787 24,468,867 5,233,920

(46,900,272) (50,146,947)Less: Long-Term Liabilities 3,246,675

Less: Deferred Inflows of Resources (848,811) (878,814) 30,003

$ 203,464,920 12,957,295Net Position 190,507,625

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

COMPARATIVE RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) 
June 30, 2018

Schedule 6

The operating results for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 are summarized below.

Percent of 
Operating Revenues Amount

Increase
(Decrease)2017 (Restated)2017 20182018

Operating Revenues 
Sales of Electric Energy $ 197,507,363 195,172,763 2,334,60098.01 % 98.07

Other Operating Revenues 4,008,314 3,850,156 158,1581.99 1.93

Total Operating Revenues 201,515,677 199,022,919 2,492,758100.00 100.00

Operating Expenses 
Power Purchased 1,732,483150,890,594 149,158,11174.88 74.95

Other Operation and 
Maintenance Expense 1,292,23022,167,929 20,875,69911.00 10.49

8,857,205 133,889Provision for Depreciation 8,991,0944.46 4.45

Tax Equivalent 2,259,975 3,184,3611.13 5,444,3362.70

Total Operating Expenses 187,493,953 181,150,990 6,342,96393.04 91.02

(3,850,205)14,021,724 17,871,9296.96 8.98 Net Operating Income

Nonoperating Revenue 
(Expense)(Net) (1,064,429) (1,706,075)(0.53) (0.86) 641,646

(3,208,559)Income Before Transfer 12,957,295 16,165,8546.43 8.12

(3,016,572)(1.51) Transfer Out 3,016,572

$ 12,957,295 (191,987)Change in Net Position 13,149,2826.43 % 6.61

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

SELECTED DATA AND COMPARISONS (UNAUDITED) 
June 30, 2018

Schedule 7

Presented below is a summary of certain changes in financial position together with selected data and 
comparisons.

Percent
Increase

(Decrease)
Increase

(Decrease)2017 (Restated)2018

S 201,515,677 1%199,022,919 2,492,758Operating Revenues

(191,987) -1%13,149,28212,957,295Change in Net Position

Gross Plant Additions 
Less or Plus Net Salvage 51%4,754,23414,034,550 9,280,316

Funds for Plant Addition Provided 
Through Depreciation and 
Amortization 2%170,8819,676,936 9,506,055

Excess of Plant Expenditures over 
Amounts Provided by Depreciation (225,739) -2030%4,583,3534,357,614

(38,111) -1%3,375,265State Sales Tax Collections 3,337,154

507 1%77,982Average Number of Customers 78,489

Average Use (kwH) Per Residential 
Customer 391 3%14,40514,796

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBA BRIGHTRIDGE

COMPARATIVE STATISTICAL DATA - BRIGHTRIDGE AND OTHER GROUP A MUNICIPALITIES IN
THE TVA AREA (UNAUDITED)

June 30, 2018

Schedule 8

Certain revenue statistics and operating costs of BrightRidge for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 
2017 are compared with the composite of Group A Municipalities in the TVA area for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2017.

2017 Composite of 
Group A Municipalities 
on TVA Area (Note 1)BrightRidge

20172018

Average Number of Customers 14,93878,489 77,982

$ 10.42 $ 10.60 $ 9.42Electric Sales - Cents per Kilo\watt Hour Sold

Percent of Revenue by Classes to Total Electric Sales 
Residential
Large Lighting and Power 
Small Lighting and Power 
Street and Outdoor 
Unbilled Revenue - All Classes

43.15 %
44.43
10.71

56.25 % 
33.48

55.16 % 
34.87

9.34 9.39
1.79 1.81 1.93

(0.86) (1.23) (0.22)
100.00 % 100.00 % 100.00 %

$ 7.48 $ 7.65 $ 7.45Purchased Power - Cents Per Kilowatt Hour Purchased

Percent of Unaccounted for Kilowatt Hours 
(Distribution Losses) 3.26 %5.88 % 3.16 %

Certain Expenses Expressed in Dollar per Customer 
Transmission and Distribution 
Customer Accounting and Collecting 
Sales Promotion 
Administrative and General

$ 140.89 
48.35

$ 134.91 
48.12

$ 167.60 
49.27

7.01 3.90 6.10
89.70 89.90 118.42

$ 276.83 $ 341.39$ 285.95

Percent of Certain Operating Expenses to Revenue from 
Electric Sales 

Purchased Power
Other Operating Expenses (Depreciation and Taxes)

76.40 % 76.42 % 79.78 %
7.31 5.70 7.45

83.71 % 87.23 %82.12 %

Note 1 - Data compiled from information set forth in "The 2017 Financial and Statistical Report for Municipal 
and Cooperative Distributors of TVA Power" published by the Tennessee Valley Authority. For comparative 
purposes, amounts for Memphis, Chattanooga, Knoxville, Fiuntsville and Nashville have been excluded from 
the Composite. The 2018 report was not available as of the date of this audit report.

See independent Auditors' Report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE SECTION



j Blackburn,
: Childers & 
Steagall, PLC

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors 
Johnson City Energy Authority 

dba BrightRidge

We have audited, in accordance \A/ith the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of 
the Johnson City Energy Authority dba BrightRidge (BrightRidge), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise BrightRidge's basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 13, 2018.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered BrightRidge's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of BrightRidge's internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of BrightRidge's internal control.

A deficiency in internai control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of BrightRidge's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal control, that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged within governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we considerto be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether BrightRidge's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
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Johnson City Energy Authority 
dba BrightRidge

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over 
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of BrightRidge's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering BrightRidge's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

BLACKBURN, CHILDERS & STEAGALL, PLC 
Johnson City, Tennessee

November 13, 2018
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JOHNSON CITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
DBABRIGHTRIDGE

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 
June 30, 2018

Current Fiscal Year Findings

No findings reported.

Prior Fiscal Year Findings Not Implemented

No findings reported.

Prior Fiscal Year Findings Implemented

No findings reported.
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EXHIBIT E 

Application of Johnson City Energy Authority, d/b/a BrightRidge for a State-Issued 

Certificate of Franchise Authority 

 

Local Governments Provided Notice 

 

  

Jenny Brock, Mayor 
City of Johnson City, Tennessee 
Municipal & Safety Building 
601 East Main Street 
Johnson City, Tennessee  37601 
 

William ("Joe") Grandy, Mayor 
Washington County, Tennessee 
100 E. Main Street 
Jonesborough, Tennessee  37659 

Chuck Vest, Mayor 
Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee 
123 Boone Street 
Jonesborough, Tennessee  37659 

Richard S. Venable, Mayor 
Sullivan County, Tennessee 
206 Sullivan County Courthouse 
3411 Highway 126 
Blountville, Tennessee  37617 
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EXHIBIT F 

Application of Johnson City Energy Authority, d/b/a BrightRidge for a State-Issued 

Certificate of Franchise Authority 

 

Minority-Owned Business Participation Plan 

Pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 7-59-313, this Minority-Owned Business Participation Plan (the 
"Plan”) sets forth the plan of Johnson City Energy Authority, d/b/a BrightRidge ("Provider") to 
actively solicit bids from, and let contracts to, minority-owned businesses when establishing, 
providing, or expanding cable or video services and/or broadband Internet service and related 
support facilities. 

1) Minority-Owned Business.  "Minority-owned business" means a business that is 
solely owned, or at least fifty-one percent (51 %) of the assets or outstanding stock of which 
is owned, by an individual who personally manages and controls the daily operations of 
the business and who is impeded from normal entry into the economic mainstream because 
of: 

a. Past practices of discrimination based on race, religion, ethnic background 
or sex, including, but not limited to, women; 

b. A disability as defined in Tenn.  Code Ann. § 4-26-102, including, but not 
limited to, disabled veterans; or 

c. Past practices of racial discrimination against African-Americans. 

2) Supplier Diversity Policy Statement.  It is the policy of the Provider to promote the 
purchase of goods and services from minority-owned businesses.   Maximum practicable 
opportunity shall be given to minority-owned businesses to participate as suppliers of 
material and services to the Provider.   The Provider also encourages subcontracting 
opportunities from minority-owned businesses. 

3) Promotion of Opportunities for Minority-Owned Businesses.  The Provider's 
management, procurement, and human resources personnel work to identify goods and 
services that may be supplied by minority-owned businesses.  When possible, the Provider 
seeks proposals, and makes purchases, from qualified minority-owned businesses.  The 
Provider also seeks to foster relationships within minority-owned business communities. 

4) Technical Assistance to Minority-Owned Businesses.  The Provider provides 
information for minority-owned businesses upon request. 

5) Statement of Intent.  Under the Plan, the Provider shall (i) endeavor to maximize 
participation of minority-owned businesses and (ii) aim to achieve a level of minority-
owned business participation representative of the population of the demographics of the 
state of Tennessee. 
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By January 31 of each year, the Provider will prepare and submit an annual report to the 
Tennessee Public Utilities Commission concerning the Plan and the Provider's compliance 
with the Plan. 
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